
 

         For more information on these agenda items, please visit our website at www.washingtonterracecity.com 
              
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at 
801-395-8283. 

                                                   CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City 
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder. 

 
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, April 16, 2019 

City Hall Council Chambers 
5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City 

801-393-8681  
www.washingtonterracecity.com 

 
 

1.     WORK SESSION:                                              5:00 P.M. 
TOPICS TO INCLUDE; BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO: FY 2019 AMENDED BUDGET, 
FY 2020 TENTATIVE BUDGET, AND 2021-24 BUDGET PLAN 
TOPIC TO INCLUDE; BUT NOT LIMITED TO ; Executive Summary and Overview, Major Budget issues and 
Assumptions, and Financial Policies and Objectives       
                                                                       
2.     ROLL CALL                                                    6:00 P.M. 
 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.     WELCOME 
 
5.     CONSENT ITEMS 
 

5.1  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Any point of order or issue regarding items on the Agenda or the order of the agenda need to be addressed here prior 
to the approval of the agenda. 
5.2  APPROVAL OF APRIL 2, 2019, MEETING MINUTES 
 

6.    SPECIAL PRESENTATION 
       6.1  PRESENTATION OF  THE “ COURT CLERK OF THE YEAR” AWARD TO  
            JEAN BLAIR 

 
7.    SPECIAL ORDER 
         Special orders will proceed as follows: Chair introduction of item, staff/applicant presentation, questions by Council,   
         Chair opens public hearing, citizen input; Chair closes public hearing, then Council final discussion. 
 
     7.1   PUBLIC HEARING: TO HEAR COMMENT ON THE FISCAL YEAR 2019  

 AMENDED BUDGET  
 

     7.2   PUBLIC HEARING: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) 

http://www.washingtonterracecity./
http://www.washingtonterracecity.com/


 

         For more information on these agenda items, please visit our website at www.washingtonterracecity.com 
              
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at 
801-395-8283. 

                                                   CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City 
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder. 

           SECOND PUBLIC HEARING TO HEAR CITIZEN INPUT CONCERNING THE 
           PROJECTS THAT WERE AWARDED UNDER THE 2019 COMMUNITY  
           DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
    
8.     CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 This is an opportunity to address the Council regarding your concerns or ideas that are not on the agenda as part of a   
 public hearing. Please limit your comments to no more than 3 minutes.          

 
9.      COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN        
        COMMENTS 

Council and staff will consider and address concerns and take appropriate measures to follow up on any comments 
made in the citizen comments item on the agenda.                    

          
 
10.      NEW BUSINESS     
                              
         10.1 PRESENTATION: SHERIFF’S OFFICE QUARTERLY REPORT  
            A presentation on activity from January-March 2019. 
             
         10.2 PRESENTATION: VOLUNTEER AND POLICE SERVICES PROGRAM (VIP)           
 
         10 .3 PRESENTATION: ANIMAL CONTROL QUARTERLY REPORT 
             A presentation on activity from January-March 2019. 
 
           10.4 PRESENTATION: FIRE DEPARTMENT QUARTERLY REPORT 
             A presentation on activity from January-March 2019. 
 
         10.5 DISCUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF ESTABLISHING THE FIRE  
             DEPARTMENT INTERIM FIRE CHIEF AND DEPUTY CHIEF 
              
         10.6 MOTION/RESOLUTION 19-04: A RESOLUTION ADAPTING THE SYSTEM  
            EVALUATION AND CAPACITY ASSURANCE PLAN (SECAP) INTO THE 
            WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
          10.7 MOTION/RESOLUTION 19-06: A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2017 
             AND 2018 MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER PLANNING PROGRAM (MWPP) 
             ANNUAL REPORTS FOR SUBMISSION TO THE UTAH DIVISION OF  
             WATER QUALITY     
 
         10.8  PRESENTATION: FY 2019 AMENDED BUDGET, FY 2020 TENTATIVE 
                BUDGET, AND FY 2021-24 BUDGET PLAN 
                  Executive Summary and Overview, Major Budget issues and Assumptions, and Financial Policies and    
            Objectives         
    

http://www.washingtonterracecity./


 

         For more information on these agenda items, please visit our website at www.washingtonterracecity.com 
              
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons who have need of special accommodation should contact the City Recorder at 
801-395-8283. 

                                                   CERTIFICATE OF POSTING 
The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above notice and agenda was posted in three public places within the City 
of Washington Terrace City limits and sent to the Standard Examiner at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Amy Rodriguez, City Recorder. 

          10.9  MOTION/RESOLUTION 19-07: A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE FISCAL  
               YEAR 2019 BUDGET 
 
          10.10 MOTION/RESOLUTION 19-05: A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY  
              POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL  
              A resolution adopting an amendment to the Policy and Procedures manual  
               Regarding extended leave benefits. 
      
          10.11  DISCUSSION: ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING GRANT 
                Discussion on a joint grant application with Riverdale and South Ogden City. 
 
11.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 
        This is a discussion item only. No final action will be taken. 

       
12.     ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 
        This is an opportunity for staff to address the Council pertaining to administrative items. 
 
13.     UPCOMING EVENTS    
       April 24-26th ULCT 
       April 25th: Planning Commission Meeting (tentative) 6:00 p.m. 
       May 7th: City Council work session 5:00 p.m. 
       May 7th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
14.    ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN   
 

http://www.washingtonterracecity./


 

         CC Minutes 4-2-19 

 1 

City of Washington Terrace 2 
_________________________________________________ 3 

Minutes of a Regular City Council meeting 4 
Held on April 2, 2019 5 

City Hall, 5249 South 400 East, Washington Terrace City, 6 
County of Weber, State of Utah 7 

 8 
MAYOR, COUNCIL, AND STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT  9 
Mayor Mark C. Allen 10 
Council Member Scott Monsen - Excused 11 
Council Member Blair Brown  12 
Council Member Larry Weir  13 
Council Member Scott Barker  14 
Council Member Jeff West - Excused 15 
Finance Director Shari’ Garrett 16 
Public Works Director Steve Harris 17 
City Recorder Amy Rodriguez 18 
City Manager Tom Hanson 19 
Lt. Jeff Pledger 20 
 21 
Others Present 22 
Charles and Reba Allen, Amy Miller, Col. Jon Eberlan, Chief Maison, Tye and Skylar Ellison 23 

 24 
1.    “MEET AND GREET” WITH HILL AIR BASE COLONEL JON A. EBERLAN  5:30 P.M. 25 
                                                                         26 
2.     ROLL CALL                                                    6:00 P.M. 27 
 28 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 29 
Tye and Skylar Ellison from troop 282 led the pledge of allegiance. 30 
 31 
4.     WELCOME 32 
Mayor Allen introduced Colonel Jon Eberlan and Chief Maison. He stated that they were on a tour of the 33 
City and participated in a meet and greet with staff and residents earlier in the meeting.  34 
 35 
5.     CONSENT ITEMS 36 
 37 

5.1  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 38 
5.2  APPROVAL OF MARCH 19, 2019, MEETING MINUTES 39 

 Items 5.1 and 5.2 were approved by general consent.  40 
   41 
6.     CITIZEN COMMENTS 42 
There were no citizen comments.    43 
 44 
7.      COUNCIL/STAFF RESPONSE AND CONSIDERATION TO CITIZEN        45 
        COMMENTS 46 
Due to lack of citizen comments in item 6, item 7 is unnecessary.            47 
          48 



 

         CC Minutes 4-2-19 

8.      NEW BUSINESS     49 
                              50 
         8.1 PRESENTATION: HILL AFB COLONEL JON A. EBERLAN  51 
Col. Eberlan thanked the Mayor, Council, staff, and residents for their support of the base, stating that the 52 
support from this state has been unmatched with any other community in which he has been stated. 53 
Col. Eberlan stated that the runway is being reconstructed and this is affecting the noise patterns of the 54 
flights.  55 
He stated that the 388th has been practicing night flying, which has been contributing to the change in 56 
noise patterns as well. 57 
Col. Eberlan handed out the Hill Air Force Base Economic Impact Statement for 2018. He stated that Hill 58 
Air Base is the single largest employer in the state of Utah. He stated that the economic impact went up 59 
roughly 170 million dollars last year. He stated that they estimate an additional 406,000 jobs within the 60 
next 5-6 years. He stated that every aircraft, except for the F-15, is refurbished at Hill. He stated that the 61 
biggest growth will be in software. 62 
Col. Eberlan stated that there is a depot line for the minuteman 3 missile system at Hill. He stated that the 63 
ground base deterrent system will also be stationed at Hill Air Force Base. 64 
He stated that the F-35 depot is continuing to grow.  65 
Col. Eberlan stated that the main thing that they are trying to do as a base is have the security and support 66 
systems for the growth that is coming its way. 67 
Col. Eberlan thanked Council for their support of the Air Base and Armed Forces. 68 
              69 
         8.2 DICUSSION/MOTION: APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR CITY AUDIT  70 
             SERVICES 71 
Garrett stated that the firm of Keddington and Christenson have been conducting our audits for  72 
the past 5 years. She stated that the contract completed at the end of last year’s audit. She stated  73 
that they are highly competent and fair and staff is in agreement with their fee. 74 
She stated that the engagement letter is the accounting terms and details of the audit. Garrett  75 
stated that base amount proposed is the typical amount, stating that there are certain 76 
situations that may warrant a negotiation of terms (such as a single audit). 77 
 78 

Motion by Council Member Barker  79 
Seconded by Council Member Brown 80 

To approve entering into a contract with the firm of Keddington and Christensen 81 
For City Audit Services 82 

Approved unanimously (3-0) 83 
 84 

          8.3 PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION: MAJOR BUDGET ITEMS FOR FISCAL YEAR 85 
             2020 AND FISCAL YEARS 2021-2025 BUDGET PLAN 86 
Hanson presented the major budget items to Council. He noted that staff has been working with Council 87 
since November to put together a budget for the upcoming Fiscal Year. 88 
Hanson stated that there should not be any surprises in the budget. 89 
Hanson stated that this year the staffing level for the Fire Department will change from 2 firefighters to 3 90 
per shift.  He stated that this would be an increase of $256,000 this year. He stated that staff is 91 
anticipating an annual $16,000 to maintain that change. 92 
Hanson spoke about OTIS II and it will be an ongoing discussion item. Hanson stated that the funding 93 
will be expiring in the next couple of years and the City is looking to recapture the funds. 94 
Hanson stated that we are working through Truth and Taxation to capture funds to fund the staffing for 95 
the Fire Department. Hanson stated that it is anticipated that the tax increase will yield a $93 increase in 96 



 

         CC Minutes 4-2-19 

property taxes for a house valuing $232,000. Hanson stated that he spoke to the Taxpayers Association 97 
and they stated that they will support the raise in taxes for the purposes specified.  98 
Hanson stated that the personnel plan includes several pay adjustments to some of the positions this year 99 
based on market value changes. Hanson explained that the position is budgeted for what the employee is 100 
anticipated to advance to within their range.  He stated that we anticipated a 6 percent increase in health 101 
care, however, it came in at 5 percent. Hanson stated that our broker compared the PEHP plan to other 102 
health care options, and PEHP came in significantly lower.  103 
 104 
Hanson spoke on utility rates, stating that the rate that we are paying for our wholesale water has 105 
increased and will continue to rise. He stated that the cost of chemicals has increased, causing the most 106 
recent increase in water utility rates.  Staff is proposing a base increase of .66 ,sewer .39 , storm water at 107 
.40, and refuse will see an increase of .50. Hanson stated that the total increase to the base is 1.95. 108 
Hanson stated that the increase in refuse is based on contract, maintenance, and tipping fees and does not 109 
have anything to do with recycling. 110 
 111 
Council Member Brown stated that the increases in utility and property taxes is a lot of money and we do 112 
not have an increase in the capacity to pay. Hanson stated that we provide basic services. 113 
Hanson stated that 2.7 million dollars was secured by Steve Harris as part as a STPP grant. Hanson stated 114 
that we try to receive money wherever we can to help mitigate the impact to residents. Council Member 115 
Brown would like another discussion on the water increase to understand it better. He stated that he feels 116 
that no one seems to care about the poor residents on a fixed income. 117 
Mayor Allen questioned if we need to raise the refuse .50 per month if the tipping fee has only increased 118 
$1.00.   119 
Garrett stated that there are general waste tipping fees may go up to $41.00 a ton. She stated that the 120 
recycling tipping fee may also increase to $41.00. She stated that we entered into a new agreement with 121 
our waste hauler last year that puts the burden on the city to supply the waste cans. Garrett noted that we 122 
had left over cans last year, however, we are now seeing the burden this year.  Garrett stated that the 123 
waste hauler contract has a cap of a 3 percent CPI increase so that is what we budget. The CPI index will 124 
come out in December.  Garrett stated that we are not seeing one time annual increases anymore, noting 125 
that we have seen several a year. She stated that a little “wiggle room” has been built into the budget in 126 
anticipation of those costs. 127 
Mayor Allen asked if the increase to water part of the “pass along” that Weber Basin spoke of a few years 128 
ago. Hanson stated that the increase is due to chemical increases, as well as a “pass along” from the 129 
District. Hanson stated that Weber Basin is ramping up their infrastructure and we incur part of the cost. 130 
Hanson stated that if we do not increase the water rate, we will need to determine what will need to stop 131 
doing within the water system to pay for it. He stated that the amount of water we purchase is not 132 
negotiable, neither is the rate in which we pay. Garrett stated that the projections are going to be 133 
increasing. She stated that we are anticipating state mandates to come in to the Districts and the cost will 134 
be passed along to the City. 135 
Council Member Brown asked to see a graph on the ability to pay. He stated that he does not want the 136 
city run on what we need for services. He stated that no one cares what the annual income is for residents 137 
so we can understand what people can pay. He stated that we doubled the fire budget. He stated that we 138 
need to be a little more careful. He stated that he wants to see the graphs and statistics on what people can 139 
pay. Garrett stated that she can pull income, but would like to know what would be helpful to the Council 140 
and what they would like to see. 141 
Council Member Brown stated that we are second lowest in income in the area. He stated that we have a 142 
new building and new vehicles and is against the water increase, stating that the spending has to stop. 143 
Hanson stated that 60 percent of our residents are LMI (low to moderate income). He stated that the city 144 



 

         CC Minutes 4-2-19 

did a door to door survey to determine ability to pay. Hanson stated that staff applies for grants to offset 145 
costs that the residents would have to pay. Hanson stated that without the work of staff to procure the 146 
grants, the cost would fall on the backs of the residents.  Hanson stated that we do not have a high dollar 147 
residential area, or a sales taxable base. Hanson stated that staff does as much possible to minimize the 148 
impact. Council Member Brown stated that he realizes that prices go up, however, he stated that we need 149 
to be careful on how we spend. Hanson stated that as a result of the resident survey, we have been offered 150 
the opportunities to apply for grants specifically for LMI persons. Hanson stated that staff works hard on 151 
grants, with Council support, to procure funding to support the residents and mitigate the impact on 152 
residents. He stated that we manage the way that we spend and how to control our appetite.  He stated 153 
that we have a slim margin to manage. He stated that staff works diligently to manage our expectations 154 
with the budget based on considerations of ability to pay. 155 
Council Member Brown stated that he never heard “capacity to pay” until he brought it up a year and a 156 
half ago. He stated that he would like demographics on people’s ability to pay and would like to revisit 157 
the water rates. 158 
Mayor Allen stated that he does not believe that staff comes to Council to ask for just what they want. He 159 
stated that staff asks for what we need to pay our bills for what we need (water, sewer, refuse etc.). He 160 
stated that we have to collect that money to pay our bills and bills are increasing every year. Mayor Allen 161 
stated that we need to collect what we need so that residents can receive their service. Mayor Allen stated 162 
that he realizes the water is increasing, and he would like the other 3 utilities looked at to see if they 163 
could be cut back. 164 
          165 
 166 
            8.4  DISCUSSION/ACTION: CITY RECYCLING COST INCREASE AND POSSIBLE 167 
              RESOLUTIONS 168 
Hanson stated that he has met with Republic Service and Recycled Earth to determine where  169 
recycling may be headed. Hanson stated that he spoke with Recycled Earth this morning and it 170 
appears that if we were to enter into a longer term agreement with them and their tipping fees  171 
increase over the amount of the transfer station tipping fees, we would have the opportunity to 172 
bring our recycling to the transfer station. 173 
Hanson stated that we have been paying $36.80 a ton, which is around $3.00 less than the transfer station  174 
amount. Hanson stated that there are options moving forward if we chose to stop recycling. 175 
Hanson stated that if we stop the recycling plan, we would have to pull in all blue cans. 176 
Hanson stated that we can stay the status quo and pay the amount of tipping fees. 177 
He stated that another option would be to discontinue recycling altogether. 178 
He stated that we could go to a market based recycling plan, with an increase to the recycling rate. 179 
Hanson stated that we will continue to divert recyclables to the Transfer Station until he sees a contract.  180 
Council agreed to stay as is until a contract is in place. 181 
 182 

Motion by Council Member Weir 183 
Seconded by Council Member Barker 184 

To direct Tom Hanson to continue to work on the contract with Recycled Earth 185 
Approved unanimously (3-0) 186 

               187 
 188 
9.      MOTION: ADJOURN INTO RDA MEETING 189 

Motion by Council Member Barker 190 
Seconded by Council Member Weir 191 

To adjourn into an RDA meeting 192 
Approved unanimously (3-0) 193 



 

         CC Minutes 4-2-19 

Time: 7:45 p.m. 194 
 195 
10.     COUNCIL COMMUNICATION WITH STAFF 196 
Mayor Allen stated that the City received a 2.7 Million dollar grant for the 300 West Project. Mayor 197 
Allen thanked Steve Harris for his work on this grant.  198 
Mayor Allen handed out a list of grants that we have received since 2001. He stated that the total received 199 
has been over $15 million dollars. He stated that we are eligible for a lot of grants due to our LMI 200 
bedroom community. He stated that these are funds that we do not need to charge the residents for. 201 
Mayor Allen asked if there was a plan to restripe the roads. 202 
Hanson stated that it is in the plans for this summer.        203 

       204 
11.     ADMINISTRATION REPORTS 205 
Hanson stated that the Rohmer Park Project should be ready for bid around April 7th.      206 
Hanson stated that the Easter eggs for the Easter Egg hunt will be filled by a church group.   207 
 208 
12.     UPCOMING EVENTS    209 
       April 16th: Work Session 5:00 p.m. 210 
       April 16th: City Council Meeting 6:00 p.m. 211 
       April 24-26th ULCT 212 
       April 25th: Planning Commission Meeting (tentative) 6:00 p.m. 213 
 214 
13.   MOTION: ADJOURN INTO CLOSED SESSION  215 
 216 

Motion by Council Member Weir 217 
Seconded by Council Member Brown 218 

To adjourn into a closed session 219 
Approved unanimously (3-0) 220 

Roll Call Vote 221 
 222 

Council Adjourned into closed session to discuss: 223 
o To discuss the character, professional competence, or physical or mental health of an 224 

individual. 225 
 226 
 227 
14.    ADJOURN THE MEETING: MAYOR ALLEN   228 
Mayor Allen adjourned the closed session and regular meeting at 8:47 p.m. 229 
 230 
 231 
_________________________________          _______________________________ 232 
Date Approved                                   City Recorder 233 



City Council 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Author:  Amy Rodriguez 
Subject:  CDBG SECOND PUBLIC HEARING 
Date:  4-16-19 
Type of Item: Public Hearing 
 
Summary Recommendations:  The City Council will hear public comment on the Water Main 
Feeds to Tank#1 Project, and the Fire Equipment: Brush Truck Pump Unit.  
Questions from the audience need to be responded to (particularly those who may be 
immediately impacted by the project). 
 
Description: 

A. Topic: CDBG SECOND PUBLIC HEARING 
 

B. Background: 
CDBG requires that a second public hearing be held after an applicant has been notified 
that their application has been funded by the Rating and Ranking committee (RRC) but 
before the final application is due in May. The City was notified in March that the 
proposed Projects were recommended for a combined funding of $250,000. 
 

C. Analysis:  
CDBG further requires that the second public hearing being conducted as follows: 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PUBLIC HEARING 
Mayor Allen opened the second public hearing for the CDBG program. Mayor Allen 
stated that this hearing was called to allow all citizens to provide input concerning 
the project that was awarded under the 2019 Grant Year Community Development 
Block Grant Program. 
 
 The City has amended its capital investment plan and decided to apply for funds on 
behalf of the Water Main Feeds to Tank #1,located at 5295 South 500 West, and the Fire 
Equipment Project to purchase A Brush Truck Pump Unit . The Mayor introduced Amy 
Rodriguez as Grant Manager, and Steve Harris as the Project Manager of the 
Water Main Feed to Tank #1 Project. The Project Manager for the Fire Equipment 
will be the Interim Chief for the Fire Department.  The Mayor explained that the 
application was successful in the regional rating and ranking process and the Water 
Main Feeds to Tank #1 was awarded $220,000. The Fire Equipment Project for the 
Brush Truck Pump Unit was awarded $30,000. 
 
The Mayor explained the project to those in attendance.   
The Mayor then asked for any comments, questions and concerns from the 
audience.  
The Mayor stated that copies of the capital investment plan are available if anyone 
would like a copy.  
There were no more comments and the hearing was adjourned at _______________. 
 

Admin Dept. 



























Atta
ck

/B
ite

Bark
ing

Str
ay

/R
oam

i

Carc
as

s R
em

o

Citiz
en

 Assi
st

Fo
llo

wup

Injure
d an

im

Cita
tio

ns

Cru
elt

y

Call
s F

or S
er

v

Ex
tra

 Patr
ol

Feb-19 1 8 1 2 4 1 23 6

19-Jan 2 3 9 1 4 1 1 0 2 23 0

18-Dec 0 0 6 0 2 1 1 0 3 13 0
Nov-18 1 7 12 0 1 2 0 2 2 31 4
Oct-18 1 4 8 0 1 3 0 1 1 23 4

Sep-18 2 4 13 0 6 4 1 0 2 34 2
Aug-18 0 3 9 1 4 3 0 0 1 23 2

Jul-18 0 1 8 0 2 4 0 0 2 17 0

18-Jun 3 0 18 0 1 0 0 0 2 28 4
May-18 0 4 10 1 0 0 1 21 2 41 3
18-Apr 0 6 2 0 2 1 1 0 1 26 13

Mar-18 2 7 8 1 2 3 0 2 1 26 0
Feb-18 1 2 6 2 0 1 0 0 3 15 0

18-Jan 2 2 5 1 0 3 0 7 1 22 1

17-Dec 0 0 4 0 0 3 1 2 5 15 0

17-Nov 0 4 18 0 1 7 0 5 4 40 0

Oct-17 2 2 11 2 3 1 1 6 0 23 1

Sep-17 0 1 16 1 0 1 0 3 1 26 3
Aug-17 2 0 13 1 3 2 1 5 0 30 3

17-Jul 2 1 11 1 6 3 0 6 2 33 1
17-Jun 1 2 5 0 3 2 0 9 2 25 1

May-17 2 0 19 0 5 0 1 10 2 44 5

Apr-17 4 3 16 0 2 2 1 17 1 48 11

Mar-17 0 1 13 0 2 14 0 0 1 33 4
Feb-17 0 0 16 0 0 1 0 0 0 22 5
Jan-17 1 7 9 0 4 11 1 4 3 40 0

Dec-16 4 1 22 2 7 2 1 0 3 43 1
Nov-16 1 1 10 0 2 5 0 1 25 5
Oct-16 2 11 3 8 2 29 3



Sep-16 4 2 18 4 5 1 0 0 35 3
Aug-16 1 2 8 0 3 9 2 0 2 27 6

Jul-16 2 1 8 0 2 1 0 4 0 23 9
Jun-16 4 1 11 4 4 2 32 6

May-16 2 5 16 0 2 10 2 5 5 59 18
Apr-16 1 1 13 1 4 6 4 54 23

Mar-16 0 1 5 0 2 12 0 0 2 24 7
Feb-16 1 4 10 1 3 1 0 5 3 23 1

Jan-16 3 3 13 0 5 7 2 2 1 30 0
Dec 15 0 1 16 0 2 1 0 2 1 21 0
Nov 15 1 3 7 1 1 1 1 0 1 17 1

Oct-15 2 9 14 2 1 0 1 3 0 28 2
Sep-15 2 4 17 1 0 5 2 9 0 32 0
15-Aug 3 12 10 1 5 8 0 0 5 44 1

Jul-15 4 2 11 0 1 3 1 3 1 26 0
Jun-15 1 7 7 1 2 13 0 4 3 34 0
15-May 2 3 16 1 0 14 1 0 2 39 0
15-Apr 3 1 15 0 2 4 0 2 2 21 3
15-Mar 2 1 8 0 0 2 0 2 2 18 1

Feb-15 1 5 10 0 0 2 0 4 1 24 5
Jan-15 1 2 7 1 0 4 0 2 2 21 3

14-Dec 1 3 7 0 4 7 1 2 24 1
14-Nov 1 6 6 0 2 0 0 0 5 22 2
Oct-14 2 1 27 0 2 1 2 1 1 38 1
14-Sep 3 6 8 0 3 3 0 4 1 26 3
14-Aug 1 2 11 5 1 1 1 2 1 35 13

14-Jul 1 6 11 0 0 11 2 11 2 33 10
Jun-14 0 5 12 0 0 1 1 4 2 23

May-14 0 3 14 0 4 0 1 6 0 20
14-Apr 2 3 19 1 3 2 0 25 0 34

Mar-14 1 9 13 2 0 2 4 1 0 31
Feb-14 2 1 7 1 1 1 1 0 2 16
Jan-14 1 2 10 2 2 1 3 19

Dec-13 1 1 0 0 0 2 0 1 1



Nov-13 2 0 11 1 0 3 0 2 19
Oct-13 2 3 14 0 8 1 1 2 32
Sep-13 4 1 16 0 5 1 0 0 30
Aug-13 4 0 7 0 7 1 2 17 26

Jul-13 1 0 11 0 8 3 1 5 24
Jun-13 2 4 12 0 5 2 0 1 25

May-13 1 1 10 0 4 16 4 4 29
Apr-13 3 1 6 2 3 8 1 5 24

Mar-13 0 3 16 0 2 8 0 1 29
Feb-13 0 3 12 1 1 2 1 0 20
Jan-13 1 3 6 0 0 0 0 0 19

Dec-12 1 5 4 0 2 2 1 1 16
Nov-12 2 6 10 1 0 3 0 3 19
Oct-12 2 7 11 1 3 2 2 6 28
Sep-12 1 6 15 2 2 0 2 1 27
Aug-12 1 4 9 1 3 0 0 1 16

Jul-12 1 3 3 1 4 1 1 1 23





City Council 
Staff Report 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Author: Administration 
Subject: Interim Fire Chief and Deputy Chief 
Date: April 16, 2019  
Type of Item: Motion  
 
 
 
Description: 

A. Topic: The Washington Terrace City Fire Department will be without their Fire Chief for 
several weeks, and possibly months. Until the situation can be evaluated, staff is 
recommending that an Interim Fire Chief and an Interim Deputy Fire Chief be assigned. 

            
           The department has two Captains currently, who help with scheduling and trainings. 
           Both Captains have full time jobs at this time, but have stated that they would be willing 
            to increase their hours and rearrange their schedules to be available to fill in for the Fire 
           Chief during this time.   
 
          Staff is recommending that the Captain Clay Peterson be assigned as the Interim Fire Chief 
          And Captain Dallas Davies be assigned as the Interim Deputy Fire Chief.  Due to a higher 
          increase in responsibilities and time, staff is recommending increasing their stipend pay  
          from $500 a  month to $800 a month while they are facilitating their new roles.   
 
         The positions will have the full authorization of the Fire Chief to include; but are not  
         limited to:  Hiring employees, terminating employees, reprimanding employees,  
          authorization powers to expend budget (sign invoices, order supplies and equipment),  
          grant submittals, scheduling, and administration functions (staff meetings, Council reports,  
          etc.).  
 
         They will also function as Fire Chief on site during events. 
 
         It is expected that this would be a short term solution, and once the Department has  
         A permanent Fire Chief on duty, they would return to their captain duties and stipend. 

 
 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION 



 

 

 CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE 
 RESOLUTION 19-04 
 
 SYSTEM EVALUATION AND CAPACITY ASSURANCE PLAN 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE, UTAH, 
APPROVING THE  SYSTEM EVALUATION AND CAPACITY ASSURANCE 
PLAN (SECAP) FOR INCLUSION INTO THE WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY 
SEWER SYSTEM MANAGEMENT PLAN. 

 
 WHEREAS, Washington Terrace City  (hereafter “City”) is a municipal corporation duly 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Utah; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council is the legislative body of the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Utah Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) adopted Rule 317-801 in 
2012 which requires the City to implement the Utah Sewer Management Program in accordance with 
state law; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Utah Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) enforces the Utah Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (UPDES) and provides the City a permit for the same; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the City’s Sewer System Management Plan on October 6, 
2015; 
 
             WHEREAS, the City desires to conform to the requirements of state law which requires that the 
City incorporate the System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan (SECAP) into the Sewer System 
Management Plan; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Washington 
Terrace, Utah, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Review and Adoption. 
The City Council has reviewed and hereby approves the System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Section 2. Effective Date 
This Resolution is effective immediately upon passage and approval. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Washington Terrace City Council this ____ day of April, 2019. 
 
 
___________________________________                                        Roll Call Vote 
MARK ALLEN, Mayor                                                           Council Member Scott Barker 
City of Washington Terrace                                                     Council Member Blair Brown 
                                                                                                  Council Member Larry Weir 
ATTEST:                                                                                  Council Member Scott Monsen 
                                                                                                  Council Member Jeff West 
___________________________________ 
AMY RODRIGUEZ, City Recorder 



1 
 

Washington Terrace City 
 

System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan 
 
 
Washington Terrace City believes that one of the keys to preventing sanitary sewer 
overflows (SSOs) is to evaluate system capacity and to monitor flows throughout the 
system in order to ensure that capacities are not exceeded.   Should a collection sub-
system exceed the capacity of the pipes, the system will be immediately re-evaluated 
and corrective action taken.  The following elements are all part of the Washington 
Terrace City SECAP program.  
 

1. Initial Capacity Modeling and Master Planning 
2. Flow Monitoring 
3. Surcharge Flow Analysis 
4. Re-evaluation Modeling and Analysis 
5. Flow Reduction Evaluation and Implementation 
6. Capacity Increase Evaluation and Implementation 

 
The actual implementation process associated with each of the elements above is 
shown in figure on the next page.   This flow chart process forms the backbone of the 
SECAP.   
 
1.  Initial Capacity Evaluation 
Washington Terrace City has evaluated and performed an analysis of, and will model, 
each critical subsystem contained within its collection system.  Subsystems are 
segregated based on the branching of the collection system.  Trunk lines and collector 
lines are evaluated until the system reaches a point where less than 400 residential 
dwelling unit equivalents (RE) are upstream of that point in the system.  The 400 RE 
point was chosen based on the minimum slope requirements of the State of Utah.  An 
8-inch pipe constructed on minimum slope will carry the flow from 400 RE based on 3.2 
persons per dwelling unit, 75 gpc/d and a peaking factor of 4.   The RE equivalent is 
based on typical Utah water usage information and assumes the peaking factor will 
account for a reasonable amount of inflow and infiltration.  If an area is known to have, 
or flow metering identifies, a significant amount of inflow and infiltration, additional 
evaluation will be needed.  In these areas the capacity of an 8-inch pipe system may be 
significantly reduced below 400 RE.   



2 
 

 
 

SECAP Flow Chart 



3 
 

In addition to developing an equivalent flow for a residential unit, consideration should 
also be given to time of concentration in the collection system.  Based on typical diurnal 
flow patterns, if the transit time in the branch system is less than 2 hours, time of 
concentration can be ignored. 
 
2.  Flow Monitoring 
Washington Terrace City has not conducted any wastewater flow metering to this date 
and, under normal conditions, does not anticipate the need to meter any section of the 
wastewater collection system, except to calibrate the system model.  Several factors 
lead to this conclusion: 

• Every manhole in the City is inspected annually.  Observation records are kept 
and, when called for, are compared to the current state of a manhole.  The 
condition of each manhole is noted, wastewater levels measured, signs of 
surcharging are listed, high water level marks are measured, debris deposits are 
described and removed, and surcharging evidence upstream/downstream is 
investigated. 

• One-fourth to one-third of older sewer mains in the City have been videoed one 
or more times over the last 15 years.  Only one Infiltration and Inflow (I & I) has 
been noted during those investigations.  A sewer main/series of manholes was 
discovered along a section of road in Washington Terrace City some years ago 
that collected foundation drain water.  A parallel storm water line was installed 
along the same road section to collect the inflow water and properly dispose of 
it.  The sewer main sections and manholes were also replaced. 

• Sewer mains are cleaned by certified City wastewater collection system 
employees every three years—more often in problem areas such as root 
intrusion areas, bellies, historical FOG issues, potential concrete pipe corrosion, 
etc.  Surcharging has only been an issue during SSO events. 

• The City of Washington Terrace is nearing build-out.  There are some limited 
areas that can be developed, but none are large enough to warrant larger mains. 

• Storm drain cross connections are not allowed by City Ordinance.  Dig permits 
are issued for all excavation involving sewer laterals/mains and storm drain lines 
and the City inspects those sites regularly during construction. 

•  Water from foundation drains and surface connections are not allowed by City 
Ordinance and are not legal.  Smoke testing is conducted periodically and on an 
as-needed basis to detect suspected illicit discharges. 

• The City is working to develop a model of our sanitary sewer system.  A detailed 
map of the system is in place with GPS location of manholes, pipe material, size, 



4 
 

length, and slope of each pipe section.  The model will be calibrated via flow 
metering at key locations during finalization. 
 

3.  Surcharge Flow Analysis 
If any collection subsystem is identified as having any of the following problems the 
system will be evaluated to determine future action.  These problems are: 
 

1. Sanitary Sewer Overflow to the Environment 
2. Sanitary Sewer Break Remaining in the Trench 
3. Basement Backup 
4. Observed Subsystem Surcharging. 

 
The flow evaluation may result in multiple conclusions, some of which may require 
further action.  Possible conclusions and their further action are listed below.   This list is 
not inclusive nor does it require the specific action detailed.  These are given as 
possible examples and will be used by the Public Works Director and Public Works 
Maintenance Supervisor (DRC) to determine correct future action.    
 

 
Flow Reduction Evaluation – (See 5. Below) 

 
Foreign Objects or Obstructions   
There are multiple foreign objects which may be found in sewers.  These may 
include objects knocked into sewers during construction, illegally placed in sewer 
manholes, roots, grease and soaps, bellies in piping systems, etc.  Each of these 
problems should be found during the backup investigation and a plan developed 
to insure the problem does not reoccur.  Types of action may include increased 
cleaning frequency, spot repairs, greater pretreatment activity, lining of pipes, 
and other corrective actions which resolve the problem.    

 
Allowable Surcharging 
Some piping systems may be able to accept surcharges without creating 
problems.  Such systems may be deep and surcharging occurs below the level of 
basements or manhole rims, or they may be in areas where there are no 
connections.  In such cases the resolution of the observed surcharge may just be 
additional monitoring. 

 



5 
 

 
Revised System Modeling  
Where piping system problems cannot be resolved in a less expensive way, the 
system may be further modeled to determine upgrade needs.  Modeling should 
include known flow information and future projections.  Since the system has 
been shown to have problems, further modeling should be more conservative in 
flow projections.  Revised modeling should follow the guides given next.     

  
4.  Re-evaluation Modeling and Analysis 
When a subsystem needs demonstrate unresolvable problems by less costly means, 
the subsystem should be re-modeled and required action determined.   Revised 
modeling may show that flow reduction may still be viable or it may show that the 
system can allow current surcharge conditions.  Most likely, however, the modeling will 
normally form the basis for construction to enlarge the subsystem capacity.  Modeling 
should be done either by:  
 
 1.  Washington Terrace staff/City Engineer using commercially 

available software, 
  2. Washington Terrace staff/City Engineer using spreadsheet models,  
  3. Engineering firms using available software or spreadsheets. 
 
It is important to insure the modeling is comprehensive and includes all the potential 
flow sources.   While the current area zoning and land use planning should be used in 
the model development, care should be taken to discuss possible changes with 
appropriate City officials.   Where possible zoning changes appear likely, the model 
should be re-run with the revised zoning alternatives.   Once a resolution has been 
selected, the resulting project should be placed on the capital improvement plan (CIP). 
 
5.  Flow Reduction Evaluation and Implementation 
Should excessive flows be identified during the surcharge analysis, solutions may be to 
proceed with an inflow and infiltration study with the ultimate goal of reducing flows.   
These flow reductions may be achieved by reconstruction of specific areas, internal spot 
repairs, removing illegal storm water or sump pump connections from homes or storm 
water systems, and system grouting.  Tools used in flow reduction may include 
extensive in-line camera inspection, smoke testing, dye testing, and increased 
inspection or flow monitoring.    
 



6 
 

 
6.  Capacity Increase Evaluation and Implementation 
The capacity evaluation should be expedited based on the impact of the problem on the 
environment and the possible repeat of the overflow/backup/surcharging.   Details on 
prioritization are given in the next section. 
 
Systems requiring additional capacity should be engineered for expansion by qualified 
staff and/or engineering consultants.   Project design shall be based on adopted City 
Standards and should comply with State of Utah regulations found in R317-3.   
Easements should be obtained, where needed, and the design should include an 
analysis of other utilities in the vicinity.   Design review should be done by the applicable 
regulatory agency, as appropriate.   A design report should be prepared for each 
project.  Where appropriate, the subsystem modeling may be substituted for the design 
report.   
 
Finalized projects will be placed on the CIP.   
 
System Improvement Prioritization 
The priority for improvement should adhere to the following general guidelines: 
 

High Priority Projects 
When there is significant potential for sanitary sewer overflows, or frequent 
basement backups, the improvement should be considered a high priority and 
any available budget should be allocated to the project.  

 
Medium Priority Projects 
Where the problem is infrequent and the possibility exists that it may not repeat 
in the near future, the priority for correction is medium.   Medium priority projects 
may be delayed until appropriate budget is available or the priority is adjusted to 
high priority.  Should an SSO or basement backup repeat in the same area, the 
improvement/solution should be assigned a higher priority. 

 
Low Priority Projects 
If the observed problem is infrequent, there is possibility that it may not repeat in 
the near future and the possibility that increased flow in the subsystem is low, the 
correct priority is low.  Low priority projects will be placed in the budget process 
and evaluated against other needs.  These projects will eventually be completed, 



7 
 

but the work is not prioritized above plant and equipment needs.    
Capital Improvement Plan 
The Wastewater CIP is part of the Washington Terrace budgeting process to insure 
sufficient revenue to address identified weaknesses in the sanitary sewer system.  
Items which have been identified as needing a structural fix are placed on the CIP list, a 
cost estimate is formulated that includes all major construction elements, and the 
project is assigned a priority for completion in the 0-5 Year, 5-10 Year, or 10-20 Year 
horizon.  Priorities and projects are reviewed/revised yearly.  Sources of funding are 
identified for all high priority projects so that SSO’s or other failures do not re-occur.  
Forecasts of available funding for medium and low priority projects are made to facilitate 
future revenue requirements.   



 

 

 CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE 
 RESOLUTION 19-06 
 
 MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER PLANNING PROGRAM 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE, UTAH, 
APPROVING THE  MUNICIPAL WASTEWATER PLANNING PROGRAM 
SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT FOR 2017 . 

 
 WHEREAS, Washington Terrace City  (hereafter “City”) is a municipal corporation duly 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Utah; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council is the legislative body of the City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Utah Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) adopted Rule 317-801 in 
2012 which requires the City to implement the Utah Sewer Management Program in accordance with 
state law; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Utah Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) enforces the Utah Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (UPDES) and provides the City a permit for the same; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to approve the Municipal Wastewater Planning Program 
Self- Assessment Report for 2017 ; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Washington 
Terrace, Utah, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Review and Adoption. 
The City Council has reviewed and hereby approves the Municipal Wastewater Planning Program Self-
Assessment  Report for 2017 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 
Section 2. UPDES Compliance. 
That to the best knowledge of the City Council, the City has taken all appropriate actions necessary to 
maintain collection system operation effluent requirements stipulated in the City UPDES Permit No. 
UTG580110. 
 
Section 3. Effective Date 
This Resolution is effective immediately upon passage and approval. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Washington Terrace City Council this ____ day of April, 2019. 
 
___________________________________                                        Roll Call Vote 
MARK ALLEN, Mayor                                                           Council Member Scott Barker 
City of Washington Terrace                                                     Council Member Blair Brown 
                                                                                                  Council Member Larry Weir 
ATTEST:                                                                                  Council Member Scott Monsen 
                                                                                                  Council Member Jeff West 
___________________________________ 
AMY RODRIGUEZ, City Recorder 



1 of 16 4/11/2019

Please Select the Appropriate Facility from the Dropdown Menu

Facility Name: 
Facility Class and Grade COLLECTION II - -

Owner Name: 

E-mail:    

Municipal Wastewater Planning Program (MWPP) 
Annual Report

2017

SUBMIT BY APRIL 16, 2018

Electronic Submittal:
 https://deq.utah.gov/ProgramsServices/services/submissions/index.htm

NOTE:  This questionnaire has been compiled for your benefit  to assist you in evaluating the technical and financial needs of 
your wastewater systems.  If you received financial assistance from the Water Quality Board, annual submittal of this report is 

a condition of that assistance.  Please answer questions as accurately as possible to give you the best evaluation of your 
facility.  If you need assistance please call Beth or Judy, Utah Division of Water Quality: (801) 536-4300. 

Steven E. Harris

Washington Terrace

steveh@washingtonterracecity.org

801-395-8289

Name and Title of Contact Person:

Phone:    

WASHINGTON TERRACE

Public Works Director



2 of 16 4/11/2019

Definitions
I. Definitions: The following terms and definitions will help you complete the worksheets and questionnaire:
1Asset Management – Any combination of management tools applied to physical assets of the sewer system with the objective 
of providing the required level of service in the most cost-effective manner. It incorporates asset lifecycle management tools, 
including depreciation, with the accountant's cost allocation process.
2Capital Facility Plan – An engineering report detailing the planning procedures including a comprehensive analysis to 
establish the need, scope, basis, viability and implementation schedule of proposed sewer system projects.

15Sewer System - The collective of sewerage systems and treatment works operated by the public utility or sponsor.
16User Charge - A fee established by ordinance and used to pay the cost of sewer systems. Different fees may be established 
for one or more classes of users. For purposes of this survey, user charge means the annual average fee charges per sewer 
connection.

9Operation and Maintenance Costs - The total annual cost for management, operations and maintenance of sewer systems 
including labor and benefits, general and administrative overhead, materials, supplies, utilities, fuel, tools, etc. These costs do 
not include capital improvements costs or debt service. Repair and replacement costs for fixed assets may be included.

10Plan of Operations – A plan summarizing the operational and financial requirements that the sewer system must meet to 
achieve its goals and purpose. The minimum requirements are established I UAC R137-3-1.8

12Repair and Replacement Costs - The annual cost to renew or replace fixed assets of the sewer system. Fixed assets are 
generally land, buildings and equipment. These are often major major costs not included in operations and maintenance 
budgets.

11Rate Study – A study that establishes the user charge(s) of a sewer system based on the required level of service and its 
cost.

13Repair and Replacement Sinking Fund - A fund or account established for renewal or replacement of fixed assets.
14Sewer Revenues - Income from user charges and other fees or taxes collected to pay the cost of sewer systems.

3Capital Improvements - Addition of a permanent structural change or the restoration of a property that renews or improves its 
value, increases its useful life, or adapts it to new uses.
4Capital Improvement Reserve Fund - A fund or account established for capital improvement projects.
5Debt Service – A payment of interest and principal, usually due annually, made in repayment of a loan or bond obligation.

6Debt Service Reserve Fund - A fund or account established for use in making up deficiencies in bond repayment funds.

7Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) - A unit of wastewater that incurs the same cost for operations and maintenance 
as the average volume of domestic waste discharged from a single family residence in the sewer system service area

8Impact Fee – A fee established by ordinance to be imposed on new development for payment of capital costs associated with 
providing public services to the new development.

Instructions 
Save this file to your local computer. The digital MWPP form is built in Microsoft excel.  Please contact Beth or 
Judy if you cannot find your facility name or having trouble downloading your digital MWPP form.
You will need to fill all the yellow boxes with the appropriate information.  Several of the questions are Yes/No 
questions that require you to select the yellow cell and then click the small arrow drop down button to be able to 
select the appropriate answer. You may move through the worksheet by simply pressing tab to move from box to 
box. Hitting Enter within the form may cause you to skip over questions.  Please be sure to verify that all yellow 
boxes have been filled with the appropriate information.   Begin filling out the form by selecting the name of your 
facility from the dropdown menu. Please be sure to select the correct facility from the dropdown menu.  DWQ will 
only accept one form from each facility. Once you have entered all the appropriate information in all the yellow 
boxes the MWPP form is complete and you are ready to submit the completed MWPP package back to DWQ. 
Please be sure to save your completed form. Please do not submit your form until you have the date the MWPP 
was presented to your Board or Council completed.  You may not submit a second form with the date at a later 
time. DWQ will only accept one form from each facility. If you experience any trouble or have any questions 
please contact DWQ Engineering Section Staff.



3 of 16 4/11/2019

Form completed by:
Steven E. Harris
May Receive Continuing Education /units (CEUs)

Financial Evaluation Section 



4 of 16 4/11/2019

Complete the following table: WASHINGTON TERRACE

Question Answer
Amount

 $     395.58 

Yes/No
No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Complete the following table: WASHINGTON TERRACE

Question Answer
YES/NO

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

 

Complete the following table: WASHINGTON TERRACE

Question Answer
YES/NO

Yes

Yes

What was the User Charge16 for 2017?

Are sewer revenues14 sufficient to cover operations & maintenance costs9, and 
repair & replacement costs12 (OM&R) at this time ?

Part II: CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS

Are projected Capital Improvements Reserve Funds sufficient for the next 
twenty years ?

Are projected Capital Improvements Reserve Funds sufficient for the next ten 
years ?

Are projected Capital Improvements Reserve Funds sufficient for the next five 
years ?

Are sewer revenues maintained in a dedicated purpose enterprise/district 
account?

Part I: OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE

Are property taxes or other assessments applied to the sewer systems15?

Is the repair & replacement sinking fund sufficient to meet anticipated needs?

Does the sewer system have sufficient staff to provide proper OM&R?

Has a repair and replacement sinking fund13 been established for the sewer 
system?

Are projected sewer revenues sufficient to cover OM&R costs for the next five 
years ?

Has a Capital Improvements Reserve Fund4 been established to provide for 
anticipated capital improvement projects?

Are sewer revenues sufficient to cover all costs of current capital improvements3 

projects?

Part III: GENERAL QUESTIONS

Are you collecting 95% or more of your anticipated sewer revenue?



5 of 16 4/11/2019

Yes
Yes
Yes

Complete the following table: WASHINGTON TERRACE

Question Answer
YES/NO

Yes
Yes

No

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

Yes

4/16/2019

Provide your best estimate of the following costs:

2018 2019 2020 2021
$120,000 $120,000 $120,000 $120,000
2022 2023

$120,000 $120,000

Do you fund sewer system capital improvements annually with sewer revenues 
at 2% or more of the total replacement cost?

Do you know the total replacement cost of your sewer system capital assets?
Do you  use an Asset Management1 system for your sewer systems?

Have you updated your Capital Facility Plan2 within the last five years?

Part IV: PROJECTED NEEDS

Cost of projected capital 
improvements 

FINANCIAL EVALUATION SECTION END

Do you maintain a Plan of Operations10?

Do you charge Impact fees8?

Have you completed a Rate Study11 within the last five years?

Part IV: FISCAL SUSTAINABILITY REVIEW

Have you completed an Impact Fee Study in accordance with UCA 11-36a-3 
within the last five years?

Do you have a written safety plan for sewer systems?
Do you have a written emergency response plan for sewer systems?
Are Debt Service Reserve Fund6 requirements being met?

Please enter the date that this MWPP package was presented to your Board or 
Council



6 of 16 4/11/2019

Form completed by:
Steven E. Harris
May Receive Continuing Education /units (CEUs)

Complete the following table: WASHINGTON TERRACE

Collection System Section



7 of 16 4/11/2019

Question Answer

1943

2001

Complete the following table: WASHINGTON TERRACE

Question Answer
Number

0

0

2017

0

0

(c) may result in a public health risk to the general public;

Class 1 - a Significant SSO means a SSO or backup that is not caused by a private lateral 
   (a) affects more than five private structures;

(b) affects one or more public, commercial or industrial structure(s);

Part II: DISCHARGES

The Utah Sewer Management Program defines two classes of sanitary sewer overflows (SSOs):

Class 2 -a Non-Significant SSO means a SSO or backup that is not caused by a private lateral 
           

Please indicate what caused the SSO(s) in the previous question. 

Please specify whether the SSOs were caused by contract or tributary 
community, etc.

Part I: SYSTEM AGE

(d) has a spill volume that exceeds 5,000 gallons, excluding those in single private structures; or
(e) discharges to Waters of the state.

What year was your collection system first constructed (approximately)?

What year was the the oldest part of your collection system constructed, 
replaced, or renewed?

How many days last year was there a sewage bypass, overflow or basement 
flooding  due to equipment failure (except plugged laterals)?

NA

NA

Number of Class 2 SSOs in Calendar year 

Number of Class 1 SSOs in Calendar year 

Below include the number of SSOs that occurred in year:

How many days last year was there a sewage bypass, overflow or basement 
flooding in the system due to rain or snowmelt?



8 of 16 4/11/2019

Complete the following table: WASHINGTON TERRACE

Question Answer
Yes/No

No

No

16
0

3,549

Complete the following table: WASHINGTON TERRACE

Question Answer

7

Denzil Remington IV
Curtis J. Gerritsen II Facility Class & Grade
Jordan Briggs II COLLECTION II

Hayden Clements II - -

[Names] [Grade]
[Names] [Grade]

Note: Enter all names even if the list isn't visible within the cell.

Not Certified
Small Lagoons

Collection I

What is the current grade of the collection system DRC operator(s)? 

List all other collection operators in your system by their certification.

Are new developments (industrial, commercial, or residential) anticipated in the 
next 2 - 3 years that will increase flow or BOD5 loadings to the sewerage system 
by 25% or more?

Did an industry or other development enter the community or expand production 
in the past two years, such that flow or wastewater loadings to the sewerage 
system increased  by  10% or more?

Scott Ricketts

[Names]

ad Bennington, Dillon Tay

Part III: NEW DEVELOPMENT

Equivalent residential connections7 served 

State of Utah Administrative Rules requires all public system operators considered to be in 
Direct-Responsible-Charge (DRC) to be appropriately certified at lease at the Facility's Grade.  

Number of new commercial/industrial connections in the last year
Number of new residential sewer connections added in the last year

Part IV: OPERATOR CERTIFICATION

Approximate population served
How many collection system operators do you employ? 

9310



9 of 16 4/11/2019

Collection II
Collection III

Collection IV

Yes/No

Yes

Complete the following table: WASHINGTON TERRACE

Question Answer
Yes/No

Yes

Yes

Complete the following table: WASHINGTON TERRACE

Question Answer
Yes/No

Yes
Yes

Yes

No

  ritsen, Jordan Briggs, Hayd  

  emington, Steven Harris-R

[Names]

NA

10/1/15
Has the SSMP been adopted by the permittee’s governing body at a public 
meeting?
During the annual assessment of the SSMP, were any adjustments needed 
based on the performance of the plan?

Is/are your DRC operator(s) currently certified at the appropriate grade for this 
facility?

Part V: FACILITY MAINTENANCE

Have you updated the collection system operations and maintenance manual 
within the past 5 years?

Have you implemented a preventative maintenance program for your collection 
system?

Part VI: SSMP EVALUATION 

Has your system completed a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP)?
Has the completed SSMP been public noticed?
Date of Public Notice

If yes, what components of the plan were changed (i.e. line cleaning, CCTV inspections, 
manhole inspections and/or SSO events)?



10 of 16 4/11/2019

Yes/No
No

Yes/No

No

NA

If yes, what part of the SSMP was audited and were changes made to the SSMP 
as a result of the audit?

During 2017, was any part of the SSMP audited as part of the five year audit?

Have you completed a System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan 
(SECAP) as defined by the Utah Sewer Management Program?



11 of 16 4/11/2019

Complete the following table:
This section should be completed with the system operators.

WASHINGTON TERRACE

Question

Select 
Answer
100% 

covered

No lift stations.  Good overall condition with areas containing bellied, tree root entry, 
inaccessibility, and minor size limitations.  Approximately 1/3 of the collection system 
mains have been installed/replaced since 2001.  1/4 mile of main will be slip lined in 
2018.

A 1/4 mile overflow bypass line was installed in 2017 in concert with 1/4 mile of main to 
be slip lined in 2018, realign sewer main from under sidewalk to street, replace/slip line 
2 backyard lines, slip line sewer mains along 4 streets, replace several manholes on 3 
streets, replace sewer lines in 3 streets, and install HDPE line under railroad.

Tree root intrusion, limited areas of FOG, inaccessible mains in back yards.

Yes, as listed in B. above.  Washington Terrace City has a Capital Improvement Plan for 
the Sewer Collection System that covers 0-5 years, 5-10 years, 10-20 years.  Planning 
and funding efforts are based on those horizons.

What sewerage system capital improvements3 does the utility need to implement in the next 
10 years?

What sewerage system problems, other than plugging, have you had over the last year?

Describe the physical condition of the sewerage system:  (lift stations, etc. included)

Part VII: NARRATIVE EVALUATION

Is there a written policy regarding continuing education and training for wastewater operators?

Yes.  Continuing education and training is tied directly to Public Works Department 
wages and promotion.  Employees are trained in all aspects of sewer maintenance and 
safety during weekly safety meetings and on the job.  Employees are also sent to 
collection system certification classes and testing--all paid for by the City.  Employees 
are expected to keep up CEUs to maintain their certifications and to earn at least Grade 

Is your utility currently preparing or updating its capital facility plan2?

Does the municipality/district pay for the continuing education expenses of 
operators?



12 of 16 4/11/2019

 Any additional comments? 



13 of 16 4/11/2019

The Financial Evaluation Section cannot be properly completed with a yes or no answer.  
Most of the questions require explanations to discribe the situation. 

COLLECTION SYSTEM SECTION END



 CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE 
 RESOLUTION NO. 19-05 
 
 POLICY AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF WASHINGTON TERRACE CITY, 
UTAH, ADOPTING AMENDMENTS TO THE CITY POLICY AND 
PROCEDURES MANUAL 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Washington Terrace (hereafter “City”) is a municipal corporation 
duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Utah; 
             
            WHEREAS, it is the policy of the City to establish reasonable rules of conduct for 
employees and remain in compliance with safety, health and insurance laws applicable to the 
City; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council Adopted the Policy and Procedures Manual in open 
meeting held on February 5, 2019; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council would like to amend a section of the Manual; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Washington 
Terrace, Utah, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Rules of Procedure and Order. 
The changes to the Policy and Procedure Manual attached as Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted and 
incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
Section 2. Effective Date. 
This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council this ___ day of _________, 2019. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
MARK C. ALLEN, Mayor 
Washington Terrace City 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
AMY RODRIGUEZ, City Recorder 
 
 
 



 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Council Member Brown                   ___ 
Council Member Monsen                 ___ 
Council Member Barker                    ___ 
Council Member Weir                      ___ 
Council Member West                      ___ 



 

98       
  Revision Date: 09/2018_____________ 

 

 
 
 
 
12.   LEAVE WITHOUT PAY. 

 
          A. The City Manager or designee may grant an employee leave 

without pay for a specified period of time, not to exceed one (1) 
year.  At the expiration of the leave without pay, the employee shall 
return to the same position, where feasible, or to a similar position. 
Failure of the employee to return to work at the expiration of leave 
without pay shall be considered a voluntary resignation of their 
position and employment without notice. 

 
          B.   A leave without pay shall not constitute a break in service.  

However, during a leave without pay period an employee’s annual 
vacation leave, sick leave, and time toward their performance 
evaluation, if applicable, shall not accrue.  

 
       C.   Leave without pay shall be granted: 

 
 (1) For education purposes when the employee’s course of 

study will be of direct benefit to the City, their absence will 
not be a hardship for their department, and the employee 
agrees to return to work at the end of the leave without pay. 

 
 (2) To attend funerals not covered by the funeral leave policy. 

 
 (3) To attend to an ill or injured member of the employee’s 

immediate family when the absence is not covered by sick 
leave. 

 
D.    Employees are expected to apply for leave without pay in advance and in 

writing,( unless incapacitated ), providing as much detail about the 
absence as possible so that the City Manager or designee may decide 
when the leave without pay is warranted.  The information included shall 
include the reason for the request, the date of return and the reason for 
the request with documentation. 

 
       (1) The employee will not continue to accrue vacation or sick leave.   
           (2) Health Insurance will be terminated and may be reinstated upon 

return if the employee’s status is eligible for insurance.  The 
employee may request to continue insurance and will be 
responsible for the full amount of the full premium. 

 



 

99       
  Revision Date: 09/2018_____________ 

 

E.    An employee may request to continue receiving employer paid medical 
benefits: 

       (1) The employee has been employed by the City for a minimum of 5 
years and is in good standing and 

       (2) Has applied for Long Term Disability through the City provided plan. 
 Documentation will be required. 

 
           F.   The City Manager may approve a maximum of ninety (90) days.  If Long 

Term Disability is not approved the employee may be responsible for 
paying back the full health insurance premium.  

 
G . . If employee has filed a fraudulent claim the employee will be terminated 

immediately and will be responsible for paying back the full health 
insurance premium. 

 
           H.     Extended long-term benefits may be provided on limited circumstances by  
                    The City Manager, subject to approval from the City Council, for an             
                    Employee that has been employed by the City for at least ten (10) years.    
                    Such extended long-term benefits are limited to full or partial medical and   
                    insurance benefits resulting from a life threatening major catastrophic          
                   medical condition where the employee has exhausted all accrued sick          
                  leave, vacation leave, and other leave options. This benefit may be               
                  extended to the family for COBRA use if the medical condition results in        
                 death of the employee. This benefit is limited in duration as determined by     
                the City Manager based upon medical circumstances and subject to City        
                Council approval. 

  
 
13. DOCUMENTATION OF LEAVE.  A copy of the official paperwork causing the 
          absence must support the above absences.  Such paperwork must be submitted 
 to the City Manager or designee, or their designated representative, as soon as 
 possible.  In some cases where official paperwork is not available, the City 
 Manager or designee, or their designate representative, may request that the 
 employee supply additional information in writing to support the absence


	staff_report CDBG 2nd Hearing.pdf
	Author:  Amy Rodriguez
	Subject:  CDBG SECOND Public hearing
	Date:  4-16-19
	Type of Item: Public Hearing
	Summary Recommendations:  The City Council will hear public comment on the Water Main Feeds to Tank#1 Project, and the Fire Equipment: Brush Truck Pump Unit.
	Questions from the audience need to be responded to (particularly those who may be immediately impacted by the project).

	City Council
	Staff Report

	Interim Fire Chief.pdf
	Author: Administration
	Subject: Interim Fire Chief and Deputy Chief
	Date: April 16, 2019
	Type of Item: Motion
	City Council
	Staff Report

	Copy of current WT raw data.pdf
	Data  July 2012- Current

	Copy of DWQ-2017-012512 (2).pdf
	Identifying Factors 


